
Please ask for:
Linda Coote
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5421
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:

13th January 2021

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Climate Change Board
DATE: 21 January 2021
TIME: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Virtual
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote

PAUL GRANT
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

Councillor Hook (ex-Officio)
Councillor Mrs Huggins (Mayor) and Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Morgan (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Casey
Councillor Chegwyn
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Earle

Councillor Mrs Hook
Councillor Hylands
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Mitchell
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Climate Change Board
21 January 2021

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE CLIMATE 
CHANGE BOARD 

4.  DEPUTATIONS 

(NOTE: the Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on xxxxx .The total time for deputations 
in favour and against a proposal shall not exceed 10 minutes)

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on xxxxxx)

6.  CLIMATE CHANGE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 

7.  CLIMATE COALITION DECLARATION 

8.  POSSIBLE STRATEGIES FOR REDUCED GRASS CUTTING AND 
REWILDING 

9.  APPROACHES TO PROMOTION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES 

10.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Change Board
12 November 2020

1

A MEETING OF THE CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD
WAS HELD ON 12 NOVEMBER 2020

Councillors Bateman (Substituting for Carter), Mrs Batty, Blackman, Casey, Chegwyn, 
Mrs Cully, Earle, Mrs Hook, Hylands, Jessop, Johnston, Mitchell, Mrs Morgan, Pepper and 
Raffaelli

9. APOLOGIES FOR NON ATTENDANCE 

An apology for non-attendance was received from Councillor Carter

10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none

11. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September 2020 be signed as a 
true and correct record

12. DEPUTATIONS 

There were none

13. PUBLIC QUESTIONS- STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none

14. PROGRESS ON CLIMATE CHANGE  MOTION 

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Corporate Policy and Community Safety 
setting out the progress that has been achieved against the Climate Change Motion.

RESOLVED: That the Board noted this progress report. 

15. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK 

Consideration was given to a report by the Head of Corporate Policy & Community Safety 
setting out the proposals for the Council’s Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework.

Members were advised that a report would be produced to be brought to Board regarding 
the Climate Change Coalition.

Members wished to recognise the good work that had already progressed and wanted to 
ensure that the public and stakeholders continue to be engaged.

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Climate Change Board
12 November 2020

2

Members were concerned about the scale of costs these motions may incur.

Members voiced caution that Gosport Borough Council should concentrate and focus on 
what could practically be delivered commensurate with the size and capability of the 
Borough.

Members wished to see a very open consultation with the public offering them every 
opportunity to submit their views and comments, within a specified timescale in particular 
involving young people through virtual platforms.

Officers advised that when the opportunity arises to implement a Citizens Assembly a 
report would be brought back to Board with costings for consideration. In the meantime it 
would be reflected in the framework.

Officers wished to reassure Members that once consultation mechanisms were developed 
there would be more detail provided regarding methodology, which would be Covid 
compliant. 

16. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

A Member hi-lighted the need for the Climate Change Board to consider the implications 
and reactions to every action they take. The example of water coolers being replaced by 
bottles that would be filled from the tap at a time when water needs conserving was sited. 

The Chairman thanked the members for the comments and feedback regarding training 
needs, and would try to provide a package of training to suit all requirements within the 
limited budget.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.22 pm



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of Meeting: 21st January 2021

Title: Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework

Author: Julie Petty, Head of Corporate Policy and 
Community Safety

Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To consider and approve, if the Board agrees it to be appropriate, the 
Climate Change Community Engagement Framework set out in this report.

Recommendation

1. That the Climate Change Community Engagement Framework set out in 
Appendix 1 be approved and published.

2. That engagement activities around climate change follow the Climate 
Change Community Engagement Framework, subject to the allocation of 
any necessary funding which is to be considered as and when required.

3. That the Climate Change Community Engagement Framework is 
periodically reviewed and updated as required.

1 Background

1.1 The Community Board passed a Climate Change Motion on 4th 
March 2020.

1.2 This motion contained three community engagement elements and 
it is proposed that these will be delivered through a Community 
Engagement Framework:

 Motion item 5: “Take steps to proactively include young people in 
the process, ensuring that they have a voice in shaping the 
future.”

 Motion item 6: “Develop a Citizens’ Assembly in order to involve 
the wider population in this process.  This group would help 
develop their own role, consider the latest climate science and 
expert advice on solutions and to consider systematically the 
climate change impact of each area of the Council’s activities.”

 Motion item 7: “Establish a Climate Change Partnership group, 
involving Councillors, residents, young citizens, relevant 
experts, businesses, Citizens Assembly representatives and 
other relevant parties. It will also recommend ways to maximise 
local benefits of these actions in other sectors such as 
employment, health, transport and the local economy.”

Agenda Item 6



1.3 An initial draft of the Community Engagement Framework was 
discussed at the Climate Change Board on 12th November 2020.

1.4 An updated version, with changes arising from that discussion, is 
presented in Appendix 1 for approval by members.

2 Report

2.1 Community engagement is particularly important for issues such as 
Climate Change, which are inherently complex, have many points 
of interaction with other policy areas, involve significant policy 
changes, and require substantial behaviour change.

2.2 To ensure effective and efficient delivery of community 
engagement and the Climate Change motion, an engagement 
framework is proposed (see Appendix 1).

2.3 A draft version of this Framework was presented to the Climate 
Change Board on 12th November, and members’ views were 
sought on two points in particular:

 The purpose and role of the Citizens’ Assembly mandated 
by item 6 of the Climate Change Motion.

 The approach to take for the Climate Change Partnership 
group mandated by item 7 of the Climate Change Motion.

2.4 Members agreed that the Climate Change Partnership should 
provide a “sounding board” and a means to share ideas and best 
practice to reduce emissions across organisations and within the 
community, based on partnership working.

2.5 Members were keen to see an “open forum” approach that would 
allow for ongoing engagement.  This could be provided by the 
Climate Change Partnership or other engagement mechanisms.

2.6 Members agreed that a focused, specific engagement activity 
would also add value and that this could be provided by the 
Citizens’ Assembly when appropriate.

2.7 Members emphasised the importance of engaging young people, 
as required by item 5 of the Climate Change Motion

2.8 The Community Engagement Framework has therefore been 
updated to add details of the key engagement activities mandated 
by the Climate Change Motion, and reflect these views on how they 
should be delivered.

2.9 Members also highlighted the need to make effective use of online 
engagement tools.



2.10 The Community Engagement Framework has therefore been 
updated to add details of the types of online tools available, and 
how they would be used.  This includes tools for seeking ideas and 
suggestions on an ongoing basis, which could be used in addition 
to the Climate Change Partnership to provide the open forum 
requested by members.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 There is no financial risk at this stage since separate approval will 
be required for any funding to deliver engagement activities based 
on the Climate Change Engagement Framework.

3.2 There is a risk of engagement activities leading to stakeholders 
becoming disillusioned, if the Council is unable to deliver actions 
identified by the engagement activities that would support efforts to 
reduce emissions.  This could endanger delivery of the target to 
encourage residents and businesses to support and adopt 
measures towards the goal of carbon neutrality. 

3.3 There is a risk if the Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework is insufficiently flexible or encourages inappropriate 
engagement activities.  To manage this, the Framework will be 
reviewed after the first six months and then annually, and updated 
if required to address any issues raised while delivering 
engagement activities based on the Framework.

4 Conclusion

4.1 A Climate Change Community Engagement Framework is 
presented, which has been updated from the draft discussed at the 
Climate Change Board of 12th November to address comments 
from members.

4.2 Approval of the Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework will help inform delivery of community engagement 
activities that are needed to support the Climate Change Motion.

Financial Services comments: No cost implications.
Legal Services comments: Any voluntary resource used as part of 

engagement activities would need to 
comply with the Council’s internal 
volunteer policy (once drafted), and 
would require the Council to ensure that 
adequate insurance was in place.

Climate Change: Approving a Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework will contribute to 
delivery of the Climate Change Motion

Crime and Disorder: N/A



Equality and Diversity: The Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework maintains due 
regard to the public sector equality duty 
contained in Section 149 of the Equality 
Act 2010.  The Framework specifies that 
particular effort should be made to 
support stakeholders who might 
otherwise struggle to participate fully or 
have an equal voice in engagement 
activities, to ensure that engagement 
processes are inclusive.

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Actions required are already integrated 
into Service Plans.

Corporate Plan: The Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework will help the 
Council to deliver effective services, 
empower residents and enhance the 
environment.

Risk Assessment: Low; see section 3 for details.  Failure to 
develop a Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework could generate 
a risk in delivery of the Council’s strategic 
approach towards climate change.

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix 1 Proposed Climate Change Community 
Engagement Framework

Report author/ Lead Officer: Julie Petty, 023 9254 5381



APPENDIX 1

Climate Change Community Engagement Framework

Introduction

Community engagement is particularly important for issues such as climate 
change, which are inherently complex, have many points of interaction with 
other policy areas, involve significant policy changes, and require substantial 
behaviour change.

There are many approaches to engagement, with differing aims, strengths, 
weaknesses, risks and costs.  This Climate Change Community Engagement 
Framework therefore sets out how the Council will aim to carry out 
engagement around the actions needed to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change.

In general terms, “engagement” refers to any relationship between the Council 
and relevant stakeholders.  Relevant stakeholders will depend on the issue at 
hand, but may include all residents of the Borough as well as businesses and 
other organisations that have an interest in activities taking place in the 
Borough or which the Council is involved in delivering.  Young people are 
considered particularly important stakeholders in relation to action on climate 
change, since they will be most affected by its impacts.

Engagement methods

Online methods

Online engagement methods are able to reach a large audience cost 
effectively, and can also simplify collection and processing of opinions and 
ideas from stakeholders.  There are several tools available that would be 
suitable for different online engagement activities; some examples of these 
are described below.  Appropriate tools will be selected for each engagement 
activity.

 Social media tools such as Facebook can help to disseminate 
information widely and can also be used to encourage feedback.

 Survey tools such as Survey Monkey are particularly useful for collating 
and analysing responses to closed questions, but can also be used to 
receive more open-ended ideas or suggestions.



 Dedicated community engagement tools such as Commonplace can be 
used to seek ideas and suggestions on selected themes.  These 
include map-based tools to allow ideas to be linked to specific 
locations.

 Discussion tools such as Slack and collaboration tools such as Padlet, 
Trello or Confluence, as well as shared document tools such as Google 
Docs, can help people share information, discuss ideas and reach 
common positions, and coordinate actions.

 Video conferencing tools such as Microsoft Teams allow meetings to 
be held online, and include options of splitting participants into smaller 
breakout rooms.  These can be used to present information, for 
workshops, or to coordinate activities.

 Real-time information gathering tools such as Slido can be used to 
gather immediate feedback during online meetings, and these can be 
especially useful in larger meetings.

Offline methods

Offline engagement is important to ensure that people who are digitally 
excluded are able to participate.  Some offline engagement methods may also 
help to facilitate deeper engagement.  Offline engagement methods include 
information dissemination via printed materials, exhibitions and presentations, 
information gathering by means of surveys, focus groups to obtain feedback, 
ideas and suggestions, and meetings to discuss options in detail.

Engagement types

One way to organise the methods described above is by considering the 
degree to which they empower stakeholders to influence and participate in the 
design, implementation and evaluation of policies, services and initiatives.  
This is shown in table 1 below.

In practice, engagement activities will usually utilise several types of 
engagement which will complement each other.  For example, a successful 
Citizens’ Assembly might involve not just involving assembly members in 
deciding on required changes, but also informing them of the science and 
policy background needed to make those decisions, consulting with residents 
beforehand to agree the questions the Citizens’ Assembly will consider, and 
informing residents of the Assembly, its deliberations and outcomes to 
increase legitimacy.



Table 1: Engagement types

Type Aim Methods Examples

Informing

To raise awareness 
and understanding of 
existing policies, 
services and initiatives, 
and to help increase 
participation in other 
engagement activities.

- Websites and 
social media

- Newsletters
- Press releases
- Posters
- Leaflets
- Local meetings

- Coastline
- gosport.gov.uk 

website
- Planning 

application notices
- Meetings with 

residents

Consulting
To allow stakeholders 
to give their opinion on 
specific proposals.

- Surveys
- Consultation 

events

- Inviting responses 
to planning 
applications

- Local plan 
consultations

- Meetings with 
residents

Listening

To understand as fully 
as possible the needs, 
views and concerns of 
stakeholders, and to 
benefit from their ideas.

- Surveys
- Focus groups
- Stakeholder 

groups
- Councillor 

surgeries
- Social media
- Online 

community 
engagement 
tools

- HCC’s covid travel 
map and active 
places survey

- Youth forums, e.g. 
summer passport 
engagement 
activities

- School Councils

Involving

To involve stakeholders 
in the design, 
implementation and 
evaluation of policies, 
services and initiatives.

- Online 
community 
engagement 
tools

- Workshops
- Stakeholder 

groups

- HCC’s active 
places summits

- Citizens’ 
assemblies

- Participatory 
budgeting

Empowering

To build stakeholders’ 
capacity and support 
them with funding, 
resources and 
expertise, so they can 
have partial or full 
control over and 
responsibility for the 
design, implementation 
and evaluation of 
policies, services and 
initiatives.

- Community 
enterprises

- Voluntary sector
- Cross-sector 

partnerships
- Stakeholder 

groups

In
creasin

g
 em

p
o

w
erm

en
t



There are several advantages to increasing stakeholder empowerment, 
including:

 benefitting from their lived experience and local knowledge;
 creating a sense of shared purpose which can encourage wider 

behaviour change;
 developing a better understanding in stakeholders of the limits to 

actions the Council can take and competing priorities;
 generating advocates of the policies developed;
 increasing the reach and scope of the Council’s activities.

On the other hand, engagement activities with greater stakeholder 
empowerment can involve higher costs and require more time.  The desire to 
empower stakeholders can also conflict with constraints set by the need to 
follow expert advice, available budgets and existing commitments, or the need 
to coordinate with other Council activities.

The benefits of empowering stakeholders as fully as possible are dependent 
on ensuring that all stakeholders are identified so that engagement activities 
do not exclude people or organisations with an interest.  It is also important to 
be aware of power imbalances between stakeholders that have the potential 
to disempower some people or groups.  Engagement processes will be 
inclusive.

Good communication strategies are essential to successful engagement for 
several reasons.  Firstly, it is important to reach as many stakeholders as 
possible.  Secondly, for less empowering forms of engagement, it is important 
that stakeholders’ expectations of the scope of the engagement are realistic, 
to avoid them becoming disillusioned which could lead to reduced 
participation in the future.  Finally, for more empowering forms of 
engagement, it is important not only that stakeholders can influence the 
outcome, but also that they understand the influence they have had.

Engagement principles

These considerations lead to the following eight principles which will inform all 
community engagement around climate change.

1. Aim to engage stakeholders in ways that empower them as much 
as possible, given time, cost and other constraints.

2. Communicate as clearly as possible the scope of each 
engagement activity, so that stakeholders fully understand how they 
will be involved and what they can and can’t influence.



3. Provide as much expert advice to stakeholders as possible to 
enable more comprehensive and effective engagement.

4. Carefully consider the stakeholders who should be involved in 
each engagement activity, to ensure that everyone with an interest in 
the outcome is included.

5. Proactively support stakeholders who might otherwise struggle to 
participate fully or have an equal voice in engagement activities, 
to ensure all stakeholders have sufficient opportunity to influence the 
outcome.

6. In particular, make every effort to engage with young people and 
ensure they can influence actions taken.

7. Feed back the outcome of engagement activities clearly and for as 
long as necessary to ensure that stakeholders understand the impact 
their involvement has had.

8. Identify and make use of best practice engagement practices both 
within Gosport Borough Council and in other councils and 
organisations.

Key engagement activities

The Council will look to identify opportunities for engagement wherever 
possible and so it is not possible to specify in this Framework all activities that 
will be carried out.  However, there are some key activities which will be 
needed to deliver the engagement priorities mandated in the Climate Change 
Motion passed on 4th March 2020.  These are described in the following 
sections.

Climate Change Partnership

The Climate Change Partnership will be set up as a forum with two aims: to 
act as a “sounding board” for Council proposals, including generating 
suggestions for Council activities, and to share ideas and best practice to 
reduce emissions across organisations and within the community.

The Partnership would be run by its members and decide its precise terms of 
reference and the methods it would use to implement them; however these 
would be likely to include the following.

 An online forum, for example using tools such as Slack to facilitate 
discussion, and shared documents to share information and track 
actions.



 Regular meetings, both online and offline (when possible), to agree 
actions and to coordinate the Partnership’s activities.

 Establishment of working groups to investigate and report back on 
specific topics, or coordinate specific actions.

The Partnership will aim to include as wide a range of stakeholders as 
possible, covering:

 Large businesses
 Business forums
 Schools and colleges (students, staff and governors)
 Youth clubs
 Residents Associations
 Environmental groups
 Faith groups
 Other community groups

At least one member of the Climate Change Board and at least one officer 
should also take part in the Partnership to represent the Council.

Citizens’ Assembly

Citizens’ Assemblies are a well-defined form of engagement that aim to 
ensure the changes needed to cut greenhouse gas emissions are shaped by 
the people that those changes will affect, and to ensure the public legitimacy 
of policies to achieve the changes.

The key features of Citizens’ Assemblies are as follows.

 Stratified random sampling is used to select participants, to ensure 
they are representative of the Borough’s residents.  (In some cases, 
the process has been adjusted to allow over-representation of 
marginalised demographics.)

 The assembly’s deliberations are independently facilitated to 
ensure all voices are heard and to help ensure the outcome is seen as 
legitimate.

 An oversight panel made up of representatives from a range of local 
organisations monitors the entire process and ensures that it is 
balanced and robust.  This could be a working group of the Climate 
Change Partnership.



Citizens’ Assemblies generally consist of three elements.

1. Learning, in which participants hear from expert witnesses, and are 
encouraged to think critically about the information they are hearing 
and question or challenge the speakers.

2. Deliberation, in which facilitated discussions take place to address the 
question(s) put to the assembly and critically assess the different 
options.

3. Decision, in which a facilitated process identifies points of agreement 
and disagreement and a report of recommendations from the assembly 
is published.

Citizens’ Assemblies tend to result in several highly engaged individuals and 
those taking part will be encouraged to join the Climate Change Partnership.  
In addition, it will be important to ensure that the assembly’s members are 
kept informed of actions being planned as a result of the recommendations 
made by the assembly, and have the chance to influence those actions.

Youth engagement

Given that the impact of greenhouse gas emissions generated or eliminated 
as a result of current policies and actions will play out over several decades, 
the views of young people on these policies and actions is particularly 
important.  It can be hard for young people to have an equal voice when 
taking part in engagement activities with adults.  Therefore, while young 
people will be encouraged to join the Climate Change Partnership and will be 
represented on the Citizens’ Assembly, additional engagement activities 
involving only young people will also be required.



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of Meeting: 21/1/2021
Title: Climate Coalition Declaration for a Healthy, Greener, 

Fairer Tomorrow
Author: Julie Petty Head of Corporate Policy and Community 

Safety
Status: FOR DECISION

Purpose

To consider and approve, if the Board agrees it to be appropriate, a 
recommendation that that Council signs the Climate Coalition Declaration for 
a Healthy, Greener, Fairer Tomorrow (hereafter referred to as “the 
Declaration”).

Recommendation

1. That the Climate Change Officer is instructed to inform the Climate 
Coalition that the Council will sign the Declaration (see Appendix 1 for the 
text of the Declaration).

2. That the Climate Change Officer is instructed to publicise the Council’s 
signing of the Declaration as appropriate.

1 Background

1.1 The Climate Change Board was notified at the meeting of 12th 
November 2020 of a request from Gosport Fair Trade Action that the 
Council sign the Declaration.

1.2 The Board agreed that a report should be submitted to allow the 
request to be considered fully at a future Board meeting.

2 Report

2.1 The Declaration calls on the Government to join with signatories in 
delivering three general aspirations (see Appendix 1 for the full text):

1. Unleash a clean energy revolution
2. Protect, restore and expand our green and wild spaces
3. Leave no one behind

2.2 The Climate Coalition is encouraging local authorities, businesses, 
community groups and other organisations, and also MPs, 
councillors, mayors and other individuals, to sign the Declaration.

Agenda Item 7



2.3 Item 9 of the Climate Change Motion passed on 4th March 2020 
states that the Council will “work with, influence and inspire partners 
across the borough, county and region to help deliver this goal [of 
reducing emissions].”

2.4 Signing the Declaration, and publicising this, would emphasise the 
importance that the Council places on reducing emissions, and would 
therefore contribute to delivering item 9 of the Climate Change 
motion, by helping to influence and inspire partners.

2.5 Item 10 of the Climate Change Motion states that the Council will 
“call on the UK Government to provide the powers, resources and 
help with funding to make this possible, and ask our MP to do 
likewise.”  A letter has been sent to Caroline Dinenage MP and 
relevant Government departments to deliver item 10 of the motion.  
The requests made in that letter align with the Declaration, and 
therefore signing the declaration would add weight to the letter.

2.6 Signing the declaration carries no cost and does not commit the 
Council to any specific actions.

2.7 It is not possible to quantify the benefits to signing the Declaration.  
However, provided there are enough other signatories, the 
Declaration may contribute to changes in Government policy that 
would help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in Gosport.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 Signing the Declaration does not generate any risk.

4 Conclusion

4.1 Signing the Declaration, and publicising this fact, would contribute to 
delivering item 9 of the Climate Change motion and support actions 
already taken to deliver item 10 of the motion.

4.2 Although the benefits to the Council of signing the Declaration cannot 
be quantified, there are no associated costs and few risks.

4.3 It is therefore recommended that, if the Board considers it 
appropriate, the Climate Change Officer is instructed to inform the 
Climate Coalition that the Council will sign the declaration, and to 
publicise this as appropriate.

Financial Services comments: No cost implications.
Legal Services comments: The Declaration does not bind the 

recipients.
Climate Change: Signing the Declaration will contribute to 

delivery of the Climate Change Motion; see 
paragraphs 2.3 to 2.6 for details.



Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

The action required is encompassed in the 
Climate Change Officer Role and therefore 
is already integrated into the Service Plan.

Corporate Plan: This action will help the Council to deliver 
effective services, empower residents and 
enhance the environment.

Risk Assessment: Low; see paragraph 3.1 for details.
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix 1 Full text of the Declaration
Report author/ Lead Officer: Tim Pratt, 023 9254 5573



APPENDIX 1

Climate Coalition Declaration for a Healthy, Greener, 
Fairer Tomorrow

The Declaration can be found at 
https://www.theclimatecoalition.org/declaration.

The full text of the Declaration is as follows.

Dear Prime Minister,

The time is now to lead the UK towards a healthier, greener, fairer future. 
Ahead of hosting the United Nations climate summit in Glasgow in 2021, we 
can build back better together if we:

 Unleash a clean energy revolution that boosts jobs across the UK, 
making our transport, power and housing fit for the future

 Protect, restore and expand our green and wild spaces; allowing 
nature to thrive, taking carbon from the air and boosting the nation’s health

 Leave no one behind by increasing support to those most vulnerable to 
the impacts of climate change at home and abroad

The UK must lead the world by ensuring our recovery gets us on track to net-
zero emissions and limits the rise in global temperature to 1.5 degrees C. Our 
best chance of building a resilient economy goes hand in hand with tackling 
climate change. 

We are ready to play our part, and we call on you to join us.

https://www.theclimatecoalition.org/declaration


Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of Meeting: 21/1/2021
Title: Possible strategies for reduced grass cutting and 

rewilding
Author: Julie Petty, Head of Corporate Policy and Community 

Strategy
Status: FOR COMMENTS TO COMMUNITY BOARD

Purpose

This report sets out a range of possible strategies that could be adopted to 
increase biodiversity, once grounds, parks and verges maintenance is brought 
in house, so that the Climate Change Board can consider these and feed 
comments to the Community Board.

Recommendation

That the Board provide their views on the matters contained in this report, so 
that these can be taken into account by the Community Board. 

1 Background

1.1 Maintenance of grounds, parks and verges is currently carried out on 
behalf of the Council by an external contractor.

1.2 This work will be brought in house as a Direct Service Organisation 
(DSO) from the start of the 2021/22 financial year.

1.3 Streetscene has investigated options for reduced grass cutting and 
rewilding that could be implemented by the DSO, to improve 
biodiversity.

2 Report

2.1 Grass verge cutting has become a reduced frequency maintenance 
operation over the last few years, to reduce maintenance costs and 
more recently to promote biodiversity.

2.3 Reduced grass cutting and rewilding also has the potential to reduce 
carbon emissions and increase carbon sequestration in soil.

2.4 There are several options for reduced grass cutting or rewilding, each 
of which has particular benefits and risks, and the most suitable 
option will depend on the area.

2.5 Streetscene has investigated these options, as summarised in 
Appendix 1.

Agenda Item 8



2.6 Responsibility for delivery of grounds, parks and verges maintenance 
lies with Streetscene, and the Community Board is responsible for 
approving the approach

2.7 A report is expected to be presented to the Community Board at an 
appropriate time after the start of the DSO.

2.8 Given the potential implications for carbon sequestration and reduced 
carbon emissions, the views of the Climate Change Board will help 
the Community Board to consider the options.

3 Conclusion

3.1 Board views on the options described in Appendix 1 are sought, to be 
taken into account by the Community Board when considering the 
maintenance approach.

Financial Services comments: The report recommendations do not incur 
additional costs and may reduce costs 
over time.

Legal Services comments: No comments.
Climate Change: Reduced grass cutting and rewilding has 

the potential to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and increase carbon 
sequestration.

Crime and Disorder: To be considered by Community Board
Equality and Diversity: To be considered by Community Board
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Service plans will be updated as necessary 
to take into account any new grass cutting 
or rewilding policies.

Corporate Plan: This will help the Council provide effective 
services and enhance the environment.

Risk Assessment: To be considered by Community Board
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix 1 Options for reduced grass cutting for 
consideration by Community Board

Report author/ Lead Officer: Tim Pratt, 023 9254 5573



APPENDIX 1

Reduced grass cutting

Grass verge cutting has become a reduced frequency maintenance operation 
over the last few years to reduce maintenance costs and more recently to 
promote biodiversity. 

Over the last few years there has been an increase in requests from members 
of the public to introduce wild flower meadows into verges in Gosport.

As a mostly urban environment there are limited opportunities to introduce 
rewilding or wild flower meadows into the landscape in Gosport, Highways 
verges are most frequently associated with access to driveways and 
increasing the height of the vegetation will result in reduced safety.

Reduced grass cutting brings several benefits:

 Increased soil capacity to store carbon.
 Lower carbon emissions in the maintenance of grass areas.
 Increased biodiversity – arises through growth of wild flora.
 Lower maintenance requirements at busy times of the year.

The negative issues that arise from the longer grass growth are:

 Increased instances of littering and fouling, dog walkers often cite being 
unable to find the faeces left by their pets as an issue in long grass.

 Vehicular sightline issues – road safety.
 Perceived untidy look to the area.

The areas selected for reduced grass cutting when considering a move to a 
DSO service from contracted maintenance were large areas where sightlines 
were not an issue.

There are several options when considering the change of maintenance as 
below.

Cultivated urban meadows, wildflower meadows and Rewilding

Wildflower meadows and urban meadows have significantly different 
maintenance requirements that will affect the appearance of the sown 



locations at different times of the year.  There is an added complication that 
both types of meadow may be sown with annuals or perennials.

Annual Wild flower meadows 

Basically arable field weeds and so benefit from the cultivation cycle 
associated with farming, annual harrowing, seed setting and removal of cut 
material.

The negatives 

 Look fairly scruffy between August and October
 Unless harrowed in the early autumn to allow germination of the set 

seed will be devoid of vegetation through the winter.

The positives

 Field poppies, corn marigolds, corn cockles and mayweed provide a 
spectacular display in early to mid-summer.

 Beneficial to bees and hover flies for about 4 to 5 months in the 
summer, May to September.

Perennial wild flower meadows 

Once sown perennial wildflower meadows can be left to establish without too 
much disturbance, the only requirement being to cut down vegetation at an 
appropriate time of year to the species involved and for the insects intended 
to be attracted and overwinter on the vegetation.

The negatives

 Some species will dominate and need to be selectively reduced in 
number.

 Tend to be less colourful than the annual meadows. 
 Slower to establish than annual meadows.

The positives

 Reduced intervention to maintain the meadow.
 Greater range of invertebrate species benefit through overwintering 

sites for larvae leading to the development of a longer and higher order 
food chain that benefits predatory invertebrates, amphibians, birds and 
small mammals such as shrews and hedgehogs.



Annual cultivated urban meadows 

Similar to annual wildflower meadows in maintenance requirements but have 
the advantage of a longer flowering season with species selected to provide 
colour for several months, May to late October.

The negatives

 Re-sowing on annual basis
 The flowers are not suitable for the larval stages of insect species.

The positives

 Spectacular designer flower displays 
 Give the perception of a neat, tidy area do not go through the dead 

looking stage of annual wildflower meadows.

Perennial Cultivated urban meadows 

Have a very long flowering period, April to October if the right seed mix is 
selected, although the flower displays are likely to be less spectacular than 
the annual urban meadows. 

The negatives

 Lack of biodiversity and do not provide food or overwintering for 
invertebrate larvae.

The positives

 At the end of the growing season top growth can be cut, shredded on 
site back on to the growing area to reduce the incidence of weeds and 
provide a nutrient base for the next years growth.

It is worth noting that a blend of wild and cultivated meadow species is offered 
by Pictorial Meadows (https://www.pictorialmeadows.co.uk/product-
category/perennial-meadow-seeds/) and Moles Seeds 
(https://www.wholesale.molesseeds.co.uk/throw-to-grow/) that go someway to 
providing the best of both worlds.

Hants Highways have particular seed mixes that they prefer used on their 
land and this is likely to be wildflower meadow only.

Finally it is recommended that grass seed is not used in the meadows, 
ultimately the grasses will dominate the flowers, except for the more dominant 
perennial wild flowers, unless a re-wilding exercise is taking place.

https://www.pictorialmeadows.co.uk/product-category/perennial-meadow-seeds/
https://www.pictorialmeadows.co.uk/product-category/perennial-meadow-seeds/
https://www.wholesale.molesseeds.co.uk/throw-to-grow/


Rewilding

Rewilding is a process where existing turf-grass areas are allowed to grow 
and are left to develop their own flora naturally. In areas where the grass is 
prone to rapid growth the grass would initially need to be cut and collected on 
several occasions to reduce the nutrient levels in the soil to reduce the rate of 
grass growth and prevent the grass reaching 1.5 to 1.8m height when 
flowering.

The Gosport Borough Council approach should be to use all of the above 
techniques appropriate for each site selected, therefore cultivated meadows 
should be considered for housing estate areas and more formal urban parks 
while wild flower meadows and rewilding selected  for more naturalised 
settings such as Stokes Bay, Cycletracks along disused railway lines (note 
GBC do not officially own the old railway track sites) and creeks sides at 
Walpole Park, Gosport Park and Grove Road recreation ground.

There are several barriers to achieving good floral diversity these are;

 Invasive native species such as Alexanders (Smyrnium olusatrum) that 
require a lot of work to control their growth.

 Additional littering, dog fouling and fly tipping due to public 
misconception that rewilding areas are “waste ground”.

 Lack of good preparation of sites to be sown with wild flowers or areas 
of rewilding – a good 6 months to 2 years is needed to either eliminate 
existing grass and weeds prior to sowing wild or cultivated flower seed  
or to reduce the soil nutrient level for rewilding. 

Please see the photo below of cultivated flower mix at Stanley park for the 
success of eliminating grass and weeds in a 6month run up to sowing, even 
on a year where there has been no significant rainfall the seed germinated 
and produced a fairly good display.



Annual cultivated flower mix sown at Stanley Park in late March 2020.



This page is intentionally left blank



Board/Committee: Climate Change Board
Date of Meeting: 21st January 2021
Title: Approaches to promotion of electric vehicles

Author: Julie Petty, Head of Corporate Policy and Community 
Safety

Status: FOR NOTING

Purpose

This report summarises the approaches taken to support use of electric 
vehicles in Hampshire County Council, and actions already being undertaken 
by Gosport Borough Council, to help the Board identify where value can best 
be added.

Recommendation

That the Board notes the information provided in this report

1 Background

1.1 The Council’s Climate Change Action Plan includes an item to review 
the use of electric vehicles (EVs) in the Council’s fleet.

1.2 The Council’s Climate Change Strategy sets a goal of encouraging 
residents and businesses to adopt measures towards the goal of 
carbon neutrality.  Supporting uptake of EVs will contribute towards 
this goal.

1.3 National policies promoting the use of EVs, including a proposed 
phase-out of sales of new pure petrol and diesel cars and vans by 
2030, can be expected to result in significant increases in the number 
of EVs.  Provision of EV charging points will be needed to support 
this.

1.4 This report therefore summarises the actions the Council is taking to 
use EVs in its fleet and to provide EV charging points across the 
Borough, and also describes the approach taken by Hampshire 
County Council, with which the Council will need to coordinate.

2 Report

2.1 The Council currently has ten vehicles in its fleet.  The lease on these 
will end in February 2022.

2.2 Streetscene are investigating options for replacement vehicles once 
the lease ends, with a view to all replacement vehicles being electric.

Agenda Item 9



2.3 Another 11 vehicles are being procured as a result of bringing 
maintenance of grounds, parks and verges in house as a Direct 
Service Organisation (DSO) from the start of the 2021/22 financial 
year.

2.4 The intention is for two of these, which are small vans, to be electric.  
However, due to the need to have vehicles available by 1st April 
2021, an interim solution is likely to be needed which may prevent 
this from being achieved initially.  In that case, the options would be 
reviewed again in four to five years’ time.

2.5 The other vehicles to be procured for the DSO are larger and will be 
traditional internal combustion engine vehicles, since cost effective 
EV options do not currently exist.  However, this will also be reviewed 
in four to five years’ time since the performance and cost of EVs is 
rapidly improving.

2.6 Charging points to support any EVs in the DSO fleet would be 
installed in the depot at Grange Farm and would not be available to 
the public.

2.7 Options for charging points to support any other Council EVs would 
need to be evaluated but charging points in Thorngate car park is a 
likely approach.  These could be for public use, although careful 
management would be required to ensure that the charging points 
were always available for Council vehicles overnight and that it does 
not impact on existing use of the car park by members and the 
police.

2.8 The Gosport Borough Council (Off-Street Parking Places) (Civil 
Parking Enforcement) Order 2020 allows for EV charging points in 
Council car parks to be supported by dedicated car park spaces that 
are exclusively for the use of EVs while they are being charged.

2.9 There is currently a charging point in Walpole Park car park, in 
addition to several privately managed charging points, mainly in 
supermarket car parks.

2.10 Hampshire County Council (HCC) provides an Electric Vehicle 
Charging Framework (EVCF), which can be used by public bodies 
including Gosport Borough Council for compliant procurement of 
feasibility studies, installation, service and maintenance of EV 
charging points.

2.11 Using the EVCF also helps to ensure the user experience of EV 
charging points is consistent across the county, which will help 
reduce barriers to EV take-up.



2.12 The feasibility of installing further charging points at Pebble Beach, 
No.2 Battery West and Marine Parade car parks is currently being 
investigated.  These would be intended as residential charging hubs 
for use by residents without off-street parking.  They would be 
procured through the EVCF and would be fully funded by the supplier 
so that there is no capital expenditure required by the Council.  The 
supplier then recovers their costs from motorists paying to charge 
their vehicles.  This is expected to be the subject of a future report to 
be considered by the Community Board, once the procurement and 
legal evaluation of the EVCF has been completed.

2.13 The Waterfront and Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) adopted in March 2018 identifies potential opportunities for 
redevelopment and enhancement of the town centre and waterfront 
areas of Gosport.  One aspect of this SPD is the identification of 
oversupply of parking spaces in the town centre and waterfront area, 
and the potential to reorganise car parking provision and redevelop 
some car parks.

2.14 A car parking strategy will be developed in 2021 for the town centre 
and waterfront area, to ensure a detailed understanding of car 
parking capacity and demand, and how existing arrangements could 
be changed, underpins any such decisions.  The car parking strategy 
is likely to include consideration of the inclusion of EV charging 
points, and the provision of charging points in car parks in the town 
centre and waterfront area will be informed by this strategy.

2.15 A Local Plan review process is underway, with adoption of the 
revised Local Plan expected in winter 2022/23, subject to changes to 
national planning legislation which may impact this process.  
Currently, the intention is to include new elements in the Transport 
Policy section of the Local Plan, which will require new residential 
and commercial developments to include EV charging infrastructure.

2.16 Availability of on-street charging will be important to encourage use 
of EVs by people who are unable to charge vehicles overnight using 
their domestic electricity supply.

2.17 As the Highways Authority, HCC is responsible for installation of on-
street EV charging points.

2.18 HCC is running pilot projects installing 50 on-street EV charging 
points in Winchester and Eastleigh, and will run additional pilot 
projects next year in Farnborough and Aldershot.  These pilots will 
inform an HCC EV charging point strategy and action plan.



2.19 Roll-out of on-street charging to other areas following the pilots will 
be planned according to predicted demand, based on the 
demographics of each area.  HCC expect demand to rise relatively 
slowly in Gosport, and so it is likely to be several years before on-
street charging becomes available in Gosport.

2.20 HCC provides advice for residents without off-street parking on its 
website, since in many cases charging from their domestic electricity 
supply will still be possible.

3 Conclusion

3.1 Approaches to support use of EVs in Hampshire County Council and 
actions being undertaken by Gosport Borough Council are 
summarised above, which the Board is asked to note.

Financial Services comments: All purchase or lease of capital items 
including vehicles will be subject to 
procurement as best value assessment.

Legal Services comments: No comments.
Climate Change: Using EVs in the Council’s fleet contributes 

to meeting the target of being carbon 
neutral for the Council’s own operations by 
2050 or sooner.  Installation of EV 
charging points will support uptake of EVs 
in the borough, and therefore contribute to 
meeting the target of encouraging 
residents and businesses to adopt 
measures towards the goal of carbon 
neutrality.

Crime and Disorder: Need to consider designing out crime/anti-
social behaviour with regard to provision of 
EV Charging Points.

Equality and Diversity: Equality and diversity implications will need 
to be considered when procuring EV 
charging points.

Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

Actions required are already integrated into 
Service Plans.

Corporate Plan: Using EVs in the Council’s fleet and 
installing EV charging points will help 
deliver the strategic priorities of responding 
to the challenges of climate change (see 
above), promoting health and wellbeing 
(due to reduced air pollution), and 
delivering quality services (by providing 
infrastructure that will be needed by 
residents).



Risk Assessment: Low.  Poor design or siting of EV charging 
points could discourage take-up of EVs in 
the Borough and therefore risk delivery of 
the Council’s strategic approach towards 
climate change.  These risks will need to 
be assessed and managed when EV 
charging point installation is being 
procured.

Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures: None
Report author/ Lead Officer: Tim Pratt, 023 9254 5573



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE CLIMATE CHANGE BOARD
	Minutes

	6 Climate Change Community Engagement
	7 Climate Coalition Declaration
	8 Possible Strategies for Reduced Grass Cutting and Rewilding
	9 Approaches to Promotion of Electric Vehicles

